[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
21 April 2021
Time

4.00 pm

Venue

Online

Public Meeting?

YES

Type of meeting

Executive

Membership
Chair
Vice-chair

Cllr Louise Miles (Lab)
Cllr Ian Brookfield (Lab)

Labour
Cllr Paula Brookfield
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal
Cllr Linda Leach
Cllr John Reynolds
Cllr Stephen Simkins
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman
Quorum for this meeting is two Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:
Contact
Tel/Email
Address

Dereck Francis, Democratic Services
01902 555835 or dereck.francis@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,
Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:
Website
Email
Tel

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk
democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS
1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 12)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record]

4

Matters arising
[To consider any matters arising from the minutes]

DECISION ITEMS (AMBER - DELEGATED TO THE CABINET (RESOURCES) PANEL)
5

Acquisition of Privately Owned Empty by Agreement or Compulsory
Purchase: 4 Moathouse Lane East, Wednesfield, Wolverhampton, WV11 3BN
(Pages 13 - 24)
[To take action to resolve the on-going issues surrounding a long-term empty
property which has remained empty since 2012]

6

Community Asset Transfer - Burdett House (Pages 25 - 34)
[To approve a Community Asset Transfer of Burdett House]

7

Community Asset Transfer - Low Hill Youth Resource Centre (Pages 35 - 44)
[To approve a Community Asset Transfer of Low Hill Youth Resource Centre]

8

Schedule of Executive Decision Notices (Pages 45 - 52)
[To note the summary of open and exempt executive decisions approved by
cabinet members in consultation with employees]

9

Exclusion of press and public
[To pass the following resolution:
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business
as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information on the grounds shown
below]

Part 2 - exempt items, closed to press and public
10

Procurement - Award of Contracts for Works,
Goods, and Services (Pages 53 - 72)
[To approve the award of contracts for works, goods
and services]

Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information) Para (3)

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

11

Schools Capital Programme 2021-2022 (Pages 73 82)
[To approve the Schools Capital Programme 20212022]

12

Investing to improve health outcomes for the city's
children, young people and families in partnership
with the NHS (Pages 83 - 90)
[To approve additional investment in the partnership
with the NHS]

Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information) Para (3)

Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information) Para (3)

This page is intentionally left blank

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 3

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
Minutes - 17 March 2021
Attendance
Members of the Cabinet (Resources) Panel
Cllr Louise Miles (Chair)
Cllr Ian Brookfield (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Paula Brookfield
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal
Cllr Linda Leach
Cllr John Reynolds
Cllr Stephen Simkins
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman
Employees
Tim Johnson
Mark Taylor
Emma Bennett
Ross Cook
Charlotte Johns
Richard Lawrence
Claire Nye
David Pattison
Laura Phillips
Jaswinder Kaur
Dereck Francis

Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Director of Children's and Adult Services
Director of City Environment
Director of Strategy
Director of Regeneration
Director of Finance
Director of Governance
Deputy Director of People and Change
Democratic Services Manager
Democratic Services Officer

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

1

Apologies for absence
No apologies for absence were received for the meeting.

2

Declarations of interests
The following declarations of interests were made on agenda item 6 (Treasury
Management Activity Monitoring Quarter Three 2020-2021):
Councillor/Officer
Councillor Louise Miles

Interest
Non-pecuniary

Page 5

Reason
WV Living Shareholder Board
member
Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Councillor Jacqueline
Sweetman

Non-pecuniary

WV Living Shareholder Board
member

Mark Taylor, Deputy Chief
Executive

Non-pecuniary

Director of WV Living

Ross Cook, Director of City
Environment

Non-pecuniary

Director of WV Living

3

Minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved:
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 17 February 2021 be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

4

Matters arising
There were no matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting.

5

Revenue Budget Monitoring Quarter Three 2020-2021
Councillor Louise Miles outlined the key points from the report on a projection of the
likely revenue outturn position for the General Fund and the Housing Revenue
Accounts compared with the Council’s approved revenue budget for 2020-2021, and
the projected financial implications of the Covid-19 pandemic.
Resolved:
1. That the use of £65,000 from the Regeneration Reserve to develop a
business case for a hotel, including delivery and funding options, financial
performance and disposal advice as detailed in paragraph 6.4 of the report be
approved.
2. That the contribution of £75,000 to the Regeneration Reserve for use on the
development of the British Steel site in future years as detailed in paragraph
6.5 of the report be approved.
3. That the use of £113,000 from the Efficiency Reserve to fund resources
including a Manager, a Business Analyst and Developer to work on the
Councillor Enquiries project as detailed at paragraph 6.6 of the report be
approved.
4. That the change of name of the 2020-2021 Budget Strategy Reserve to Future
Years Budget Strategy Reserve to enable this reserve to hold funds to support
the Budget Strategy in accordance with the approved medium-term financial
strategy (MTFS) as detailed at paragraph 6.7 of the report be approved.
5. That the establishment of supplementary expenditure budgets within the
2020-2021 approved budget as detailed in section 7.0 of the report for grant
funded expenditure be approved.
6. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Education and Skills,
and the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, in consultation with
the Director of Children’s Services to make payments in line with Government
guidance and approve any necessary virements under the Winter Grants
Scheme and Holiday Activities Programme.

Page 6

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

7. That 20 virements totalling £5.8 million, for transfers within directorates, as
detailed in Appendix 4 to the report be approved.
8. That the write-off of two Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) debts totalling
£23,696.34 as detailed in Appendix 5 to the report be approved.
9. That the write-off of one Council Tax debt totalling £5,222.08 as detailed in
Appendix 6 to the report be approved.
10. That the write-off of one Housing debt totalling £6,105.80 as detailed in
Appendix 7 to the report be approved.
11. That it be noted that the Council has once again managed its money well and
delivered within budget. Overall, the General Fund projected outturn for 20202021 is currently forecast as a relatively small underspend of £507,000
(excluding the impact of Covid-19).
12. That it be noted that it is anticipated that corporately held redundancy costs
during 2020-2021 could be in the region of £1.5 million which can be met from
efficiencies.
13. That it be noted that a £10.1 million surplus on the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) is projected compared with a budgeted surplus of £10.8 million as
shown at Table 20 and in detail at Appendix 3 to the report. The projected
reduction to the surplus of £720,000 would reduce redemption of debt by
£720,000.
14. That it be noted that 34 sundry debt accounts totalling £6,278.52, as detailed
in paragraph 10.3 of the report, have been approved for write-off by the
Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure
Rules.
15. That it be noted that 981 council tax accounts totalling £346,464.49, as
detailed in paragraph 10.5 of the report, have been approved for write-off by
the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure
Rules.
16. That it be noted that 27 Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) debts totalling
£130,452.02, as detailed in paragraph 10.6 of the report, have been approved
for write-off by the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s
Financial Procedure Rules.
17. That it be noted that eight housing benefit overpayments totalling £4,490.76
as detailed in paragraph 10.10 of the report, have been approved for write-off
by the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s Financial
Procedure Rules.

Page 7

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

18. That it be noted that two debts relating to Business Improvement District (BID)
totalling £746.69, as detailed in paragraph 10.7 of the report, have been
approved for write off by the Director of Finance in accordance with the
Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.
6

Treasury Management Activity Monitoring Quarter Three 2020-2021
Councillor Louise Miles presented the progress report on Treasury Management
Activity for the third quarter of 2020-2021 and highlights of the revised Prudential
Indicators which were approved by Council on 3 March 2021.
Resolved:
1. That it be noted that the Council is continuing to operate within the Prudential
and Treasury Management Indicators approved by Council, and also within
the requirements set out in the Council’s approved Treasury Management
Strategy for 2020-2021.
2. That it be noted that revenue underspends of £2.4 million for the General
Revenue Account and £800,000 for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) are
forecast from treasury management activities in 2020-2021, arising as a
result of re-phasing of the capital programme and lower interest rates forecast
on borrowing due to the impact on the economy of Covid-19.
3. That it be noted that two of the three credit rating agencies have downgraded
the UK’s credit rating. If the remaining credit rating agency follows suit the
Director of Finance would lower the minimum sovereign rating in the Annual
Investment Strategy in line with the delegated authority approved by Council
on 17 July 2020.

7

HR Policies: Support for Carers Policy
Councillor Paula Brookfield presented for approval a revised Support for Carers
Policy and guides for employees and managers. The documents covered information
on maternity, paternity, shared parental leave, adoption and fostering leave. The
policy had been sent to Stonewall for benchmarking purposes and they had asked to
use the policy and guides as best practice documents to demonstrate to other
organisations.
Resolved:
That the revised Support for Carers Policy be approved for use by the
Council’s managers and employees.

8

Supporting people who need us most by providing 500,000 meals to our City's
food banks
Councillor Ian Brookfield presented the report that sought agreement for the Council
to continue to support those who need them most in the city during the pandemic by
funding a further 500,000 meals for city food banks to distribute. This twelve-month
support plan built on the wider package of emergency assistance put in place by the
Council to support the most vulnerable residents.

Page 8

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Resolved:
That the allocation of £450,000 to deliver a further 500,000 meals to our most
hard-pressed families in the City, as part of a wider package of support to our
food banks to support people who need us most be approved.
9

Adult Education Contract Review
Councillor Dr Michael Hardacre presented the report on a proposal to revise the
contract and associated terms and conditions for Adult Education Wolverhampton
teaching employees to provide equanimity and equality. The proposal had been
negotiated with the trade unions who had signed the agreement that goes with it.
Councillor Dr Hardacre reported that the proposal should mean that Adult Education
Wolverhampton could continue to upskill the city’s adults and young people over the
age of 19 for the modern economy.
Resolved
1. That the revised teaching contract and associated terms and conditions for
Adult Education Wolverhampton (AEW) teaching employees be approved.
2. That it be noted that the new teaching contract does not apply to senior
managers or business-related roles within the service who would consistently
receive NJC contracts of employment to reflect the nature of their duties.
3. That it be noted that a Memorandum of Understanding has been developed
with the University and College Union (UCU) to regularise future working
arrangements.

10

Care and Support Provider Fee Review 2021-2022
The intention to make a key decision on the report ‘Care and Support Provider Fee
Review 2021-2022’ at the meeting was not publicised in advance as required by the
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012. The decision was urgent and could not be reasonably
delayed for the following reasons:


The report is to approve recommendations to the annual fees of adult social
care providers.



The external care sector has supported City of Wolverhampton Council during
the Covid-19 pandemic in meeting the care needs of residents in
Wolverhampton and supported the ability to discharge people from hospital
and reducing the burden to the local hospital.



The fee reviews are effective from the start of the financial year. Providers
would not be aware of the proposed increased if there is a delay to the next
available Cabinet (Resources) Panel (CRP) and we cannot publish the rates
or organise any increase in payments until CRP give approval to the
recommendations.



The reason it had been delayed was an unintentional officer oversight.

In light of the above, consent had been obtained for the key decision to be made at
the meeting under the General Exception provisions.

Page 9

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Councillor Linda Leach presented the report on a proposed increase in fee levels for
care and support service areas and direct payment cost rates to meet additional
costs resulting from increases to the National Living Wage and to sustain the care
market in Wolverhampton.
Resolved:
1. That the proposed increase in fee levels for 2021-2022 as recommended in
the report to meet the additional costs (employee and employer) resulting
from the increases to the National Living Wage (NLW) and where applicable
increases to sustain the care market be approved.
2. That any increase in fees are in effect from 5 April 2021. (This date is aligned
to charging processes and the capability of the payment system).
3. That it be noted that engagement has been undertaken with current care and
support providers as part of the fee review to listen to feedback, however due
to current financial restraints the recommendations are not solely based on
provider requests.
4. That it be noted that the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has changed the
usual demand and take up of care services. The long-term impact of Covid19 cannot be predicted, and the Adults Commissioning Team would
continuously review sufficiency within the market.
5. That it be noted that the Adults Commissioning Team continuously works with
providers in developing the social care market to ensure a shared approach
between the Council and social care providers to meet resident’s needs.
6. That it be noted that the Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel endorsed the
proposed recommendations in its 8 March 2021 meeting.
11

Acquisition of Privately Owned Empty by Agreement or Compulsory Purchase:
4 Moathouse Lane East, Wednesfield, Wolverhampton, WV11 3BN
The report was withdrawn.

12

Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices
Resolved:
That the summary of open and exempt individual executive decisions
approved by Cabinet Members following consultation with employees be
noted.

13

Exclusion of press and public
Resolved:
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining items of
business as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the
authority holding that information).

Page 10

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Part 2 - exempt items, closed to press and public
The Chair reported that as stated previously the meeting was in confidential session
as the information included in the reports could, if released into the public domain,
prejudice the financial position of the Council or its partners. As such all present are
under a legal duty of confidentiality and must not disclose any confidential
information - to do so would not only be a breach of the Council's codes (for
councillors and employees) but also a breach of the legal duty of confidentiality.
14

Procurement - Award of Contracts for Works, Goods, and Services
Councillor Louise Miles presented the report on the award of contracts for works,
goods and services. She drew to the Panel’s attention exemptions to Contract
Procedure Rules approved by the Head of Procurement and the Director of Finance
for the period 1 to 31 of January 2021.
Resolved:
1. That authority be delegated to the Leader of the Council, in consultation with
the Director of City Environment, to approve the award of a contract for
Supply and Delivery of Food Parcels when the evaluation process is
complete.
2. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Governance, in
consultation with the Director of Governance, to approve the award of a
contract for Scanning of Archive Files when the evaluation process is
complete.
3. That the award the contract for Cremator and Mercury Abatement Plant to
Facultatieve Technologies Ltd of Moor Road, Leeds, LS10 2DD for a duration
of 15 years from 20 March 2021 to 19 March 2036 for a total contract value of
£2.6 million be approved.
4. That the award of the contract for Fuel Oils to Certas of 302 Bridgewater
Place, Birchwood, Warrington, WA3 6XG for a duration of four years from 1
April 2021 to 31 March 2025 for a total contract value of £4.4 million be
approved.
5. That the award of the contract for the Reminiscence Interactive Therapy /
Activity (RITA) system for Care Homes and the Community to My Dementia
Improvement Network Limited of 5 Brooklands Place, Brooklands Road, Sale,
M33 3SD for a duration of three years from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024 for
a total contract value of £387,660 be approved.
6. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Resources, in
consultation with the Director of Strategy, to approve the award of a contract
for Wide Area Network when the evaluation process is complete.
7. That the exemptions to the Contract Procedure Rules approved by the Head
of Procurement and Director of Finance from 1 to 31 January 2021 as set out
in Appendix 1 to the report be noted.

Page 11

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

15

Approval to Cease Tenancies and Demolish Two Properties on Old Fallings
Crescent to Enable Future Development
Councillor Jacqueline Sweetman presented the report on a proposal to cease
tenancies; rehouse tenants and demolish two properties on Old Fallings Crescent to
enable future redevelopment of the site at Old Fallings Crescent.
Resolved:
1. That entering negotiations with the tenants of 149 and 151 Old Fallings
Crescent with a view to terminating tenancies to enable the Council to
incorporate the properties into the re-development site be approved.
2. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for City Assets and
Housing, in consultation with the Director of City Environment to approve:

Ceasing lettings and suspending the right to buy for tenants of 149 and
151 Old Fallings Crescent.

The serving of notices to terminate tenancies under s138A-B and
Schedule 5A of the Housing Act 1985.

The allocation of tenants into like for like alternative temporary
accommodation to facilitate the development.

The allocation of tenants of 149 and 151 Old Fallings Crescent into the
new build accommodation once the development is complete, achieved
through a local lettings plan.

Statutory Home Loss Compensation of £6,500 for each tenant affected
by the re-development proposals. Approve further Statutory Home Loss
Compensation for each tenant that has previously qualified for
compensation as a result of moving into temporary accommodation and
into newbuild accommodation on the site.

Disturbance payments up to the value of £1,500 for each resident
affected by the redevelopment. Approve further disturbance payments
of £1,500 once the tenants move into the new build accommodation on
the site.

The use of Schedule 2 to the Housing Act 1985, Ground 10, if required
to seek possession of the properties.

The demolition of 149 and 151 Old Fallings Crescent once the
tenancies are terminated and properties are vacant.
3. That the delegation of any other agreements including deed of covenants,
collateral warranties, assignments and such other ancillary agreements,
including variations as may be deemed necessary to facilitate the
redevelopment of the estate to the Cabinet Member for City Assets and
Housing in consultation with the Director of City Environment be approved.
4. That it be noted that an architect and construction contractor to design and
build out the site would be procured separately from this report.
5. That it be noted that further reports on the re-development proposals for the
site would be submitted to Cabinet (Resources) Panel.

Page 12

Minutes

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 5

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
21 April 2021
Report title

Acquisition of Privately-Owned Empty
Property by Agreement or Compulsory
Purchase Order: 4 Moathouse Lane East,
Wednesfield, Wolverhampton, WV11 3BN

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Jacqueline Sweetman
City Assets and Housing

Key decision

No

In forward plan

Yes

Wards affected

Wednesfield South

Accountable Director

Ross Cook, Director for City Environment

Originating service

Private Sector Housing

Accountable employee

Natalie Healy
Tel
Email

Housing Improvement Officer
01902 550554
natalie.healy@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Report to be/has been
considered by

City Assets and
Housing Leadership
Team

2 March 2021

Recommendations for decision:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is recommended to:
1. Authorise the Director of City Environment to negotiate terms for the acquisition of the
property 4 Moathouse Lane East, Wednesfield, Wolverhampton, WV11 3BN and, in
default of that acquisition, give authority for a compulsory purchase order (CPO) to be
made under Part II Section 17 Housing Act 1985 in respect of the property.
2. Approve expenditure for the potential acquisition of the property, with subsequent capital
receipts being recycled within the Empty Property Strategy programme.

Page 13

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3. In the event that the property is improved and re-occupied to the satisfaction of the
Director of City Environment, authorise withdrawal of the property from the CPO.
4. Following any acquisition, authorise the Director of City Environment to dispose of the
property on the open market on condition that the property is refurbished and reoccupied with in six or 12 months (as appropriate to the scale of the works).
5. Authorise the Director of Governance to:
a)

Take all reasonable steps as soon as it is reasonably practical to secure the
making, confirmation and implementation of the CPO including the publication and
service of all Notices and the presentation of the Council’s case at any Public
Inquiry.

b)

Approve agreements with the owners of the property setting out the terms for the
withdrawal of objections to the CPO, and/or making arrangements for re-housing or
relocation of any occupiers.

c)

Approve the making of a General Vesting Declaration (the property is brought into
Council ownership via this process).

d)

Approve the disposal of the whole and/ or parts of the property by auction, tender or
private treaty.

Page 14

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

The purpose of this report is to request the Panel to authorise the acquisition of 4
Moathouse Lane East, Wednesfield, Wolverhampton, WV11 3BN, by negotiation or by
the making of a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) under Section 17 of Part II of the
Housing Act 1985 (CPO). Should it be possible to reach agreement on a mutually
acceptable undertaking, agree to the withdrawal of the property from the CPO.

1.2

The decision is in support of the Council’s Empty Properties Strategy which aims to bring
long term empty properties back into use.

1.3

The reoccupation of empty properties brings in additional income to the Council via the
New Homes Bonus paid to Local Authorities as a result of increased housing supply.

2.0

Background

2.1

The property, highlighted on the attached plan, is a detached bungalow that has been
empty since September 2012. There have been a number of interactions with the owner
since it was reported to the Council in 2015, which to date has failed to resolve the
situation and there has been no firm information provided regarding the owners intention
for the property.

2.2

In order to deal with the external disrepair of the property and overgrown land, a notice
under Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requiring the owner to
remedy the detrimental effect of the property and land was served. No appeal against the
notice was made and the notice has not been complied with.

2.3

The principle of establishing a revolving fund to drive forward the Private Sector Empty
Property Strategy was approved by Cabinet on 11 January 2006. The revolving fund
provides for properties that are consistent with the strategy to be acquired, marketed for
sale and brought back into residential occupation. The arrangements proposed for the
property identified are consistent with that strategy. Should the Compulsory Purchase
Order be confirmed in favour of the Council, the Council would seek to dispose of the
property by tender, auction, or private treaty. The property would be sold with the
condition that the property is brought back to a required standard of repair within a
specified time limit.

3.0

Evaluation of alternative options

3.1

There are three options that the Council could consider:
a) Do nothing – the property is likely to remain empty, continue to be a wasted housing
resource, continue to have a detrimental effect on the amenity of the area and
continue to be a drain on the public purse.
b) Empty Dwelling Management Order (EDMO) – An EDMO is considered to be a less
draconian option than a compulsory purchase. However, the cost of refurbishment
could place a strain on the Council’s finances. It may not be possible to recover the

Page 15

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

cost of initial refurbishment and subsequent management/ maintenance through the
rental income generated over the seven years that a Final EDMO could be in place.
c) Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) – The prospect of a CPO often prompts the
owner to act leading to the property being refurbished and re-occupied. However, if it
is necessary to acquire the property, the proposals for the onward disposal and
refurbishment set out at 5.0 of this report ensure that the property is brought back into
use.
3.2

Based on the above it is recommended that the option of a Compulsory Purchase Order
is progressed.

4.0

Reasons for decisions

4.1

The reasons for the decision are:
a) To ensure that the property provides much needed housing by prompting the
owner(s) either act voluntarily or via enforcement through a CPO.
b) To ensure that the property does not continue to be a drain on public resources.
c) To ensure that the detrimental effect that the property is having on the area is
removed.
d) To ensure that the property has a positive financial impact on the public purse through
additional New Homes Bonus funding.
e) The proposal to pursue a CPO is the most cost effective in terms of financial and
physical resources for the Council.

5.0

Reasons for decision(s)

5.1

Where it is necessary to make a Compulsory Purchase Order and this is subsequently
confirmed in favour of the Council, the Council would usually seek to dispose of the
property by tender, auction, or private treaty. The property would be sold with the
condition that the property is brought back to a required standard of repair within a
specified time limit.

5.2

Dependant on suitability and the resources available at the time of the acquisition, the
property may be suitable to be brought back into the housing stock of the Council. If this
option is considered appropriate, this would be the subject of a further report to Cabinet
(Resources) Panel.

6.0

Financial implications

6.1

In the event of an acquisition, the costs can be met from the approved capital budget for
2020-2021 of £243,000 for the Empty Property Strategy. The subsequent sale of the
property would result in a capital receipt ring-fenced to finance future purchases through
the Empty Property Strategy. Any non-capital costs incurred between purchase and sale,
for example security measures, must be met from current private sector housing budgets.

Page 16

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

6.2

As the Notice under Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 has not
been complied with, the additional statutory 7.5% compensation payment will not be
applicable in this case.

6.3

Bringing empty properties back into use attracts a New Homes Bonus to the City Council.
[JM/17022021/P]

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

Section 17 of the Housing Act 1985 empowers local housing authorities to compulsorily
acquire land houses or other properties for the provision of housing accommodation.
However, the acquisition must achieve a qualitative or quantitative housing gain. In order
to make a Compulsory Purchase Order under this power and achieve successful
confirmation, the Council will need to show compliance with the requirements of the
relevant statutory provision and circular 06/2004 Compulsory Purchase and the Crichel
Down Rules. Where there are objections to a Compulsory Purchase Order the matter
may go forward to a public inquiry and specialist Counsel may need to be engaged to
present the Council’s case.

7.2

Article 1 of Protocol 1 of the Human Rights Act 1988 guarantees peaceful enjoyment of
possessions and would be engaged by the making of a CPO. However, the contents of
this report and the actions recommended are considered to be proportional and
compatible with the Human Rights Act 1988, particularly bearing in mind the above
checks and balances on the Local Authority’s power.
[JM/17022021/H]

8.0

Equalities implications

8.1

Equalities Implications have been considered throughout the process and in assessing
the outcome. An Equality Analysis has been completed and this does not indicate any
adverse implications. Bringing an empty property back into use will improve the visual
amenity of the area and can make the area more welcoming to some groups covered by
the Equality Act 2010, in doing so this will promote participation in public life.

9.0

All other Implications

9.1

Long term empty properties can have a detrimental impact on neighbourhood
sustainability and cause environmental blight. Bringing the property back into residential
use will improve the appearance of the neighbourhood, enhance property conditions,
contribute to the regeneration of the City and help to meet the Council’s strategic
objectives.

9.2

Where applicable, Corporate Landlord Estates Team will be required to produce
valuations and arrange for the appropriate disposal of the property by auction or private
treaty.

Page 17

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

9.3

Bringing an empty property back into use will improve the health and wellbeing of the
new occupants by providing safe and secure housing.

9.4

Enabling occupation and removing the detrimental effect of the property will reduce the
anxiety associated with crime and the fear of crime that living adjacent to an empty
property can cause.

10.0

Schedule of background papers

10.1

An Action Plan to Deliver the Empty Property Strategy 11 January 2006.

10.2

Private Sector Empty Property Policy and Strategy Action Plan 2019-2024.

10.3

The Council’s Annual Housing Supply Statement, 31 March 2020.

11.0

Appendices

11.1

Appendix 1 – Site plan

11.2

Appendix 2 and 3 - Photographs

Page 18

-

14

4

MOA

THO

USE
LAN
E

1
EAS

2a

Kingdom Hall

T

7
1
293

LI
CH
FI
EL
D

295

RO
AD

TCB

1

c Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019537
O
February 2021
1:500
AJP

THE MAP REFERRED TO IN
THE WOLVERHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL
(4 Moathouse Lane East)

Page 19

COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER 2021

Shelter

City of Wolverhampton Council

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 6

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
21 April 2021
Report title

Community Asset Transfer – Burdett House

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Jacqueline Sweetman
City Assets and Housing

Key decision

Yes

In forward plan

Yes

Wards affected

St Peters

Accountable Director

Mark Taylor, Deputy Chief Executive

Originating service

Assets

Accountable employee

Luke Dove
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

City Assets Leadership Team

Strategic Asset Manager, Assets
01902 557121
Luke.Dove@wolverhampton.gov.uk
13 January 2021

Recommendations for decision:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is recommended to:
1.

Approve the Community Asset Transfer of Burdett House, 29-30 Cleveland Street, WV1
3HT to Access to Business for a term of 35 years subject to terms.

2.

Delegate authority to the Cabinet Member for Resources in consultation with the Deputy
Chief Executive to approve the terms of the Community Asset Transfer and lease.

Page 25

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

To propose that Burdett House be leased to Access to Business on a 35-year lease on
the basis of a Community Asset Transfer.

2.0

Background

2.1

In November 2020 Cabinet agreed the revised Community Asset Transfer (CAT)
Strategy in relation to all property transactions between the Council and Voluntary and
Community Organisations (VCOs).

2.2

The CAT Strategy aims to achieve a fair and transparent process for asset transfer
between the City of Wolverhampton Council and local community groups. The Strategy
assists communities to measure their state of preparedness in taking on greater
management responsibility of assets. This Strategy reflects recent experience with the
Voluntary Sector to make it more responsive to the needs of the Sector and also risk
manage the Landlord position of the Council should a charity have difficulties in sourcing
grant funding during the early stages of its development.

2.3

Community Asset Transfers are essentially the transfer of public land to a community
organisation (such as a Development Trust, a Community Interest Company or a social
enterprise) for less than market value – to achieve a local social, economic or
environmental benefit.

2.4

Burdett House is a three-storey, end of terrace property located on Cleveland Street
having previously been of mixed use including both office and retail.

2.5

The asset has previously been vacated and with no future operational requirement
identified for the Council, earmarked for demolition. The cost of demolition has an
approved budget of £315,000.

2.6

The asset is being managed currently as a void property.

2.7

The property requires a significant capital investment to bring back to a lettable standard
estimated at £250,000 - £300,000.

3.0

Access to Business

3.1

Access to Business is a registered charity based in Wolverhampton providing
professional services supporting local people into employment and self-employment and
also offering accredited and non-accredited training courses and office services for local
businesses.

3.2

The governance of Access to Business is overseen by a Board of Trustees. The Board is
comprised of eight directors with board meetings being undertaken on a quarterly basis,
and more frequently when necessary. The Finance and Human Resources Sub
Committee includes four directors whilst management responsibility of the organisation
rests with the Management Team which consists of the Chief Executive along with the
Operations Manager and Business, Finance and Compliance Manager.

Page 26

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.3

Having initially began with three staff members operating from a small property located in
Temple Street and supporting 100 beneficiaries each year, demand for Access to
Business has greatly increased. This enabled them to relocate to a new City Centre base
and during recent years following further demand, have expanded further and now
operate 22 staff members from three locations. This has allowed Access to Business to
offer additional services for residents from a number of outreach locations supporting in
excess of 1500 unemployed local people each year.

3.4

Additionally, Access to Business have delivered multiple projects in partnership with
other providers both as project lead and sub-contractor having robust financial and
monitoring systems and vast experience of overseeing financial and performance
management. This has included being Lead Partner and Accountable Body on a £1.2
million European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) Enterprise Contract, and they
currently raise in excess of £700,000 each year to support the Council’s Employment,
Skills and Enterprise agenda.

4.0

Proposed Development

4.1

Access to Business are proposing to develop Burdett House into a Wolverhampton
Social Enterprise Centre working in partnership with other local voluntary organisations
and statutory partners to provide a ‘one stop shop’ for local residents to support their
personal development, health and wellbeing, skills and support into work and selfemployment.

4.2

Following consideration of the business case as received from Access to Business, it
provides a robust structure both operationally and financially that would ensure the
property is correctly maintained in future and provides a valuable asset within the
community that would bring excellent benefits to the local economy.

4.3

Access to Business is a member of the Council led ‘Cross Sector Forum’ partnership
working with other local voluntary sector partners to develop closer working relationships
and joined up working. Members of the Forum have formed a “Social Enterprise Centre
working group” to undertake the initial planning, development and costings of the new
Centre. Members of the working group includes longstanding and successful local
voluntary organisations that all have experience of developing large scale projects,
including:








Wolverhampton City Council
Access to Business
TLC
YMCA
BME United
Beacon Centre
Wolverhampton Central Youth Theatre

Page 27

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4.4

The Wolverhampton Social Enterprise Centre will support the development of new Social
Enterprises in Wolverhampton to help to increase business growth and reduce
unemployment and provide training and work experience for unemployed people.

4.5

Access to Business will relocate its current services to the new Social Enterprise Centre
allowing them to sell or rent out their existing premises to generate income towards the
development and refurbishment of the new Social Enterprise Centre.

4.6

Working with partners Access to Business will also develop a fundraising plan to fund
building refurbishment and seek sponsorship. The new Centre will also house local
partners that will contribute to the development and running costs of the building and in
addition, Access to Business and its partners will secure additional income through
services operated in the building including:












Offering competitively priced ‘back-office’ services to support local small and medium
sized enterprises (SME’s) and retailer business growth
Commercial Training
Room Hire/Rental Units/Shop Frontage
Community Café
Business address services
Business directory
Access to IT equipment /WIFI / Conferencing facilities
Costume Hire (Partner led contribution)
Computer support/repair services
Advice and support to increase the social value of clients’ businesses.
Recruitment/selection service for local retailers / SME’s

4.7

Access to Business will oversee the management of the property along with the central
services and will ensure that the building and all associated Health and Safety
regulations and legal requirements are adhered to at all times.

4.8

To allow Access to Business opportunity to successfully secure grant funding and
corporate sponsorship and to support delivery of their community involvement, a long
lease would be required with a minimum term of 35 years at nil consideration.

5.0

Benefits of Proposed Community Asset Transfer

5.1

The proposed CAT and development of Burdett House will offer a ‘one stop shop’ in a
central location for all local voluntary sector organisations and strategic partners to work
together to deliver services through increased partnership working and reducing the need
for residents to be directed to a number of separate providers.

5.2

It will support the development of Social Enterprises and Start-ups through providing hotdesking facilities and communal working space.

5.3

It will assist in increasing the number of local people gaining employment and starting
businesses to support the regeneration of local economy.

Page 28

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5.4

It will assist in increasing volunteering and work placement opportunities with the focus
on disadvantaged unemployed people to support the development of their employability
skills and through community engagement.

5.5

Access to Business has Disability Confident Lead accreditation and will ensure full
accessibility for the new Social Enterprise centre where they will also be able to provide
support to other organisations in achieving Disability Confident status.

5.6

A new Wolverhampton Social Enterprise Centre will also assist in:







Bringing more people into the City Centre to assist with the local economy
regeneration
Increase numbers moving into employment
Increase number of business start-ups
Provide ‘back-office-services’ for local retailers / SME’s to reduce their operational
costs making Wolverhampton an attractive offer for businesses
Support the promotion of and provide an opportunity to deliver additional Council
services
Helping to re-invigorate the city centre by developing a vibrant modern location for
business and enterprise development.

6.0

Supporting Delivery of the Strategic Asset Plan

6.1

Corporate Landlord have developed a Strategic Asset Plan that was completed and
approved by Cabinet on 17 October 2018. This provides the structure and management
of the Council’s land and property portfolio over following five years, to 2023, and
incorporates the Our Assets principle. The plan is structured into three parts:




Asset Management Policy
Asset Management Strategy
Asset Management Action Plan

6.2

The Asset Management Policy establishes a clear mission with supporting principles for
the management of land and buildings, ensuring it is fit for purpose and benefits the
people of the City of Wolverhampton and to use land and buildings following
rationalisation and disposal of land and buildings, that will enable a financial return to
stimulate development and growth, support and encourage local businesses and
promote joint-working.

6.3

The transfer of Burdett House supports the policy as outlined and in particular delivery of
items A3, A5 and A9 of the Action Plan.

7.0

Evaluation of alternative options

7.1

Should the Community Asset Transfer not be approved Access to Business will not have
a long-term solution for the development of the Social Enterprise as proposed

Page 29

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

7.2

The Council could proceed with the proposed demolition of Burdett House, if the original
option as presented by the Council’s City Development Team were to be agreed. Whilst
there is an existing approved budget in the Council’s capital programme and would
provide a cleared site, the Council would continue to incur holding costs until
regeneration plans can be developed.

7.3

If the asset was retained as a void property, further revenue costs would be incurred by
the Council including void rates, security, insurance and statutory compliance costs. In
addition, vacant buildings continue to attract negative public comments and their
condition will continue to deteriorate further.

7.4

The buildings could be retained and disposed of on a leasehold basis. This option would
generate a revenue income stream but no capital receipt. There would however be
significant costs associated with bringing the properties up to a marketable standard
which comply with statutory requirements.

7.5

The assets could be retained for operational use; however, they have remained on the
void property list for some time without any internal operational use being identified.

7.6

The asset could be declared surplus and disposed of in return for a capital receipt with a
market valuation of £275,000.

8.0

Reasons for decision

8.1

Should authority be given to transfer the asset, revenue efficiencies will be made through
reduction in the annual running costs and maintenance spend.

8.2

The transfer of the asset provides Access to Business with the opportunity to bring the
building back into beneficial use thereby improving the local community and environment.

8.3

The capital budget of £315,000 assigned to the demolition of Burdett House could be
released or reallocated to support the other appropriate regeneration schemes subject to
necessary approvals.

9.0

Financial implications

9.1

The community asset transfer of Burdett House will pass responsibility for maintenance
costs, running costs and future investment costs, to Access to Business under a full
repairing lease, over a 35-year lease period for nil consideration.

9.2

Whilst not generating an annual revenue income stream, the community asset transfer
will result in a reduction to revenue expenditure, in the region of £52,000 (£1,500 per
annum), in respect of repairs, maintenance, running costs and void management costs
currently incurred by the Council, for the 35 year period of the lease. There will also be
an additional reduction in costs of £37,000 per annum with regards to business rates.

9.3

It is understood that Access to Business will fund the refurbishment of the property and
the need for Council investment, in excess of £250,000, in order to bring the property
back to a lettable standard has therefore been avoided.

Page 30

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

9.4

Burdett House was due to be demolished to support wider city regeneration. The capital
programme includes an approved allocation of £315,000 for the demolition works. The
transfer of Burdett House to Access to Business will release this allocation to support
other priority capital investment works, approval to which will be subject of future reports.

9.5

Costs capitalised to date in relation to the proposed demolition works are in the region of
£3,000. These costs will be transferred to revenue and accommodated within existing
Regeneration budgets.

9.6

Indicated by the market valuation of the site, the one-off capital receipt value forgone as
a result of not declaring the asset surplus and its subsequent disposal is in the region of
£275,000.
[TT/26012021/Y]

10.0

Legal implications

10.1

The terms of the lease must comply with S.123 Local Government Act 1972 which states
that local authorities are obliged to obtain the best consideration reasonably available
unless Secretary of State consent has been given. There is a general consent that allows
disposals at an undervalue provided that the undervalue is for a sum of less than £2.0
million and promotes that social, economic or environmental wellbeing of the area.
Leases for a term of more than seven years are deemed to be a disposal.

10.2

This disposal will therefore need to be at an undervalue of less than £2.0 million and
promote the economic, social or environmental wellbeing of the area.
[DC/03022021/J]

11.0

Equalities implications

11.1

All development plans will consider and meet the needs of all people within the local
community and an all-inclusive approach will be taken by the Council.

12.0

All other implications

12.1

The approval of a Community Asset Transfer of the asset listed in this report will prevent
it falling into further disrepair and avoid anti-social behaviour.

12.2

The Community Asset Transfer will allow Corporate Landlord to prioritise and target
expenditure on operational assets that require investment resulting in a reduced
maintenance backlog liability for the Council and ensuring assets remain compliant with
all relevant legislation.

12.3

Transfer of this property will reduce the quantity of void stock requiring management and
assist with the regeneration within a prominent City gateway location.

12.4

The transfer of the asset will provide an inclusive and positive impact on health and
wellbeing within the local community.

Page 31

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

13.0
13.1

Schedule of Background Papers
Strategic Asset Plan 2018-2023 – Report to Cabinet on 17 October 2018 including:
 Asset Management Policy 2018-2023
 Asset Management Strategy 2018-2023
 Asset Management Action Plan

14.0

Appendices

14.1

Appendix 1 – Burdett House Location Plan

Page 32

Appendix 1

REET

Burdett House 29-30 Cleveland Street

148.4m

6

7

CLEV
EL

7a

AND S

TREE
T

30
56

Shelters

26

LB

5a

25

5

24a

4a

29

4

BELL
ST

El Sub Sta

Burdett House

Court

Posts

SUMMER R
OW

El Sub Sta

SUMMER ROW

Club

mblies
God
Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100019537 Page
cost al©Burdett
House 29_30 Claveland Street.mxd_GS
urch

Club

89
33

Car Park

1:500

¯

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 7

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
21 April 2021
Report title

Community Asset Transfer – Low Hill Youth
Resource Centre

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Jacqueline Sweetman
City Assets and Housing

Key decision

No

In forward plan

Yes

Wards affected

Bushbury South and Low Hill

Accountable Director

Mark Taylor, Deputy Chief Executive

Originating service

Assets

Accountable employee

Luke Dove
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

City Assets Leadership Team

Strategic Asset Manager, Assets
01902 557121
Luke.Dove@wolverhampton.gov.uk
13 January 2021

Recommendations for decision:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is recommended to:
1.

Approve the Community Asset Transfer of Low Hill Youth Resource Centre, Fifth
Avenue, WV10 9TB to Bushbury Hill Estate Management Board for a term of 35 years
subject to terms.

2.

Delegate authority to the Cabinet Member for Resources in consultation with the Deputy
Chief Executive to approve the terms of the Community Asset Transfer and lease.

Page 35

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

To propose that Low Hill Youth Resource Centre be leased to Bushbury Hill Estate
Management Board (BHEMB) on a 35-year lease on the basis of a Community Asset
Transfer (CAT).

2.0

Background

2.1

In November 2020 Cabinet agreed the revised Community Asset Transfer Strategy in
relation to all property transactions between the Council and Voluntary and Community
Organisations (VCOs).

2.2

The CAT Strategy aims to achieve a fair and transparent process for asset transfer
between the City of Wolverhampton Council and local community groups. The Strategy
assists communities to measure their state of preparedness in taking on greater
management responsibility of assets. This Strategy reflects recent experience with the
Voluntary Sector to make it more responsive to the needs of the Sector and also risk
manage the Landlord position of the Council should a Charity have difficulties in sourcing
grant funding during the early stages of its development.

2.3

Community Asset Transfers are essentially the transfer of public land to a community
organisation (such as a Development Trust, a Community Interest Company or a social
enterprise) for less than market value – to achieve a local social, economic or
environmental benefit.

2.4

Low Hill Youth Resource Centre is a single-storey, detached property located on Fifth
Avenue, Low Hill having previously been used as a community training centre.

2.5

The asset is being managed currently as a void property.

2.6

Following the asset being vacated by the former tenant, it was re-advertised accepting
expressions of interest for a CAT. Three applications were received and following
evaluation of the same it was approved to progress BHEMB to the next stage for
submission of a full business case.

3.0

Bushbury Hill Estate Management Board

3.1

BHEMB are a not for profit tenant led and managed organisation. They encourage
participation and value their tenant’s opinions and ideas. They provide services reflective
of the needs and priorities within the local community and strive for excellence. They are
committed to continuous improvement and work in partnership to adapt to the everchanging environment whilst working to their core values as detailed below.



Respect – We respect each other and our tenants. We celebrate diversity of our
community and will serve all residents in both a respectful, fair and equitable manner.
Team Work – Together (Board, staff, members, residents and partners) can achieve
more.

Page 36

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]





Tenant Focused – Run by tenants for tenants. To provide services reflective of our
residents needs and priorities. To value our residents' opinions and to encourage
involvement and participation.
Excellence – Tenants striving for excellence. To provide the best possible service to
our residents.
Commitment – We are committed to providing an excellent service to our tenants and
committed to a continuous improvement approach.

3.2

Bushbury Hill Estate Management Board (BHEMB) was established by local people to
improve the quality of life for the residents of Bushbury Hill, Wolverhampton. The
composition of the board is 100% tenants from the local area. The aim of the
organisation is to put local people at the heart of the decision-making process to ensure
that resources are directed towards the greatest needs within the community. They aim
to deliver high quality customer service and provide high standard homes for their
tenants.

3.3

BHEMB also aim to support additional needs outside of housing that will enhance quality
of life for local people including supporting partner organisations in the delivery of
community based projects that address poverty, education, into work support, loneliness,
isolation and both physical and mental health from the very young to very old.

3.4

In addition to their tenant management role, BHEMB also provide extensive support and
investment to the development of local community initiatives. They support a large
network of volunteers across not only the WV10 area from both their own and other
voluntary and community organisations, but across neighbouring communities in Heath
Town and Park Village.

3.5

The goal for BHEMB is to provide a place where grassroots groups and organisations
can evolve out of community needs and are led by local people serving those on their
own doorsteps. They aim to provide the space and support to local people to develop
activities that will complement statutory services, and meet the specific needs and gaps
present in service provision at a local level as outlined in their organisational vision
detailed below.







BHEMB is committed to delivering high quality, customer focused services to all their
tenants and to keep their homes maintained to a high standard.
Ensure they provide effective, inclusive and accessible forms of communication,
consultation routes and involvement opportunities for all their residents.
Working in partnership to improve their area and environment.
To eliminate social and financial exclusion and sure equality of opportunity and
access to services for everyone.
To have robust governance procedures and to work transparently.
To deliver long term investment in the homes they manage through the Better Homes
Partnership.

Page 37

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4.0

Proposed Development

4.1

The Low Hill Youth Resource Centre falls within the Bushbury South and Low Hill ward of
Wolverhampton which has a resident population of 16,297, the biggest ward by
population in the City and the second most deprived. The aim of BHEMB is to build on
the first-hand experience that local people have of the multi-complex issues facing
members of the community, whilst also developing a self-sustaining community
innovation hub to be the catalyst for new and increased voluntary and community sector
services within the local area.

4.2

The CAT will retain a much-needed community resource within the area to create a selfsustaining community hub that will provide a space to encourage community innovation
alongside training, recreational, educational and vocational opportunities to the people of
Bushbury Hill, Low Hill and neighbouring communities.

4.3

The aim of BHEMB is to transform Low Hill Youth Resource Centre into a thriving, selfsustaining community innovation hub, bringing much needed services into the area and
creating opportunities for local people, raising skills, confidence and employability across
the area, resulting in an overall improvement in their quality of life. This will be delivered
through the following:


Working in partnership with members of the WV10 Consortium and members of the
Wolverhampton Learning Platform to deliver crucial services at the heart of the local
community. This will include into work support and enterprise development. They will
ensure that the services compliment those already delivered at fellow community
centres and hubs including Low Hill Community Hub, Big Venture Centre and Park
Village Education Centre. The impact that Covid-19 is having and will have for some
time on employment levels in the area, with many local people employed in the
hospitality and security industries, meaning that the need for these services will
vastly increase in the short term.



BHEMB will continue to work closely with the statutory sector and ensure that where
there is a gap in provision locally, we work with partners to offer space for delivery to
our tenants.



Create an inclusive environment that BHEMB will ensure is built into the processes,
procedures, culture and environment adopted at the Centre itself. They will ensure
that they do whatever is necessary to ensure all local people can gain access to this
community resource and ensure everyone has the opportunity to take part in its
development, delivery and ongoing sustainability.



They will support local people’s needs led ideas and provide the space for them to
develop their own community led activities. BHEMB will act as an incubation hub for
community innovation and allow for ideas to be tested and developed. They will
provide support through their staff, experienced volunteers and partner organisations
to the new and upcoming community groups to establish and develop their service in
the local area and support them to become sustainable going forward.

Page 38

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]



Initially refurbish and equip the centre to ensure there are appropriate space and
facilities available for a variety of groups, activities and services to take place.
BHEMB have a budget of £20,000 allocated for this to be undertaken. In addition,
these funds will also cover any necessary and ongoing costs associated to Covid-19
that may still be in place 2021 and beyond. In consideration of the same, BHEMB
have built in for a delay in generating room hire from the premises.



The board have also agreed to cover the running costs of the building for two years
which will allow time for the centre to increase its usage and work with local groups
and organisations to develop and deliver services. During this time new community
groups/organisations will be able to use the building at no charge whilst they
establish and embed their services into the local community, capacity support will
then be provided by both ourselves and the wider WV10 partners to support those
groups to become financially independent.



Work with both current and new community groups who will deliver a range of
services from the centre that will include services to combat loneliness and isolation
including becoming the home of the already thriving Bushbury Hill Community Action
Group and Bushbury Buddies service, delivering befriending services and activities
for both older people and lone/vulnerable adults of all ages.

4.4

Following consideration of the business case as received from BHEMB, it provides a
robust structure both operationally and financially that would ensure the property is
correctly maintained in future and provides a valuable asset within the community that
would bring excellent benefits to the local economy.

4.5

BHEMB will oversee the management of the property and will ensure that the building
and all associated Health and Safety regulations and legal requirements are adhered to
at all times.

4.6

To allow BHEMB opportunity to successfully secure grant funding and corporate
sponsorship and to support delivery of their community involvement, a long lease would
be required with a minimum term of 35 years at nil consideration.

5.0

Supporting Delivery of the Strategic Asset Plan

5.1

Corporate Landlord have developed a Strategic Asset Plan that was completed and
approved by Cabinet on 17 October 2018. This provides the structure and management
of the Council’s land and property portfolio over following five years, to 2023, and
incorporates the Our Assets principle. The plan is structured into three parts:




Asset Management Policy
Asset Management Strategy
Asset Management Action Plan

Page 39

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5.2

The Asset Management Policy establishes a clear mission with supporting principles for
the management of land and buildings, ensuring it is fit for purpose and benefits the
people of the City of Wolverhampton and to use land and buildings following
rationalisation and disposal of land and buildings, that will enable a financial return to
stimulate development and growth, support and encourage local businesses and
promote joint-working.

5.3

The transfer of Low Hill Community Resource Centre supports the policy as outlined and
in particular delivery of items A3, A5 and A9 of the Action Plan.

6.0

Evaluation of alternative options

6.1

Should the Community Asset Transfer not be approved, BHEMB will not have a longterm solution for the development of the community hub as proposed.

6.2

If the asset was retained as a void property, further revenue costs would be incurred by
the Council including void rates, security, insurance and statutory compliance costs. In
addition, vacant buildings continue to attract negative public comments and their
condition will continue to deteriorate further.

6.3

The asset could be retained for operational use; however, no internal operational use has
been identified.

6.4

The asset could be declared surplus and disposed of in return for a capital receipt with
an estimated value of £536,000.

7.0

Reasons for decision

7.1

Should authority be given to transfer the asset, revenue efficiencies will be made through
reduction in the annual running costs and maintenance spend. This is approximately
£1,200 per annum for void management costs and £5,900 per annum for business rates.

7.2

The transfer of the asset provides BHEMB with the opportunity to bring the building back
into beneficial use thereby improving the local community and environment meeting the
needs of the same.

8.0

Financial implications

8.1

The community asset transfer of Low Hill Youth Resource Centre transfers responsibility
for maintenance costs, running costs and future investment costs, under a full repairing
lease, to Bushbury Hill Estate Management Board. The lease is proposed for a 35-year
lease period for nil consideration.

8.2

Whilst not generating an annual revenue income stream, the community asset transfer
will result in a reduction to revenue expenditure, in the region of £248,000 (£7,100 per
annum) in respect of repairs, maintenance, void management costs and business rates
currently incurred by the Council, for the 35 year period of the lease.

Page 40

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.3

Indicated by the market valuation of the site, the one-off capital receipt value forgone as
a result of not declaring the asset surplus and its subsequent disposal is in the region of
£536,000.
[TT/26012021/Y]

9.0

Legal implications

9.1

The terms of the lease must comply with S.123 Local Government Act 1972 which states
that local authorities are obliged to obtain the best consideration reasonably available
unless Secretary of State consent has been given. There is a general consent that allows
disposals at an undervalue provided that the undervalue is for a sum of less than £2.0
million and promotes that social, economic or environmental wellbeing of the area.
Leases for a term of more than seven years are deemed to be a disposal.

9.2

This disposal will therefore need to be at an undervalue of less than £2.0 million and
promote the economic, social or environmental wellbeing of the area.
[DC/03022021/I]

10.0

Equalities implications

10.1

All development plans will consider and meet the needs of all people within the local
community and an all-inclusive approach will be taken by Wolverhampton City Council.

11.0

All other implications

11.1

The approval of a Community Asset Transfer of the asset listed in this report will prevent
it falling into further disrepair and avoid anti-social behaviour.

11.2

The Community Asset Transfer will allow Corporate Landlord to prioritise and target
expenditure on operational assets that require investment resulting in a reduced
maintenance backlog liability for the Council and ensuring assets remain compliant with
all relevant legislation.

11.3

Transfer of this property will reduce the quantity of void stock requiring management and
assist with the regeneration within the Bushbury South and Low Hill ward.

11.4

The transfer of the asset will provide an inclusive and positive impact on health and
wellbeing within the local community.

12.0

Schedule of Background Papers

12.1

Strategic Asset Plan 2018-2023 – Report to Cabinet on 17 October 2018 including:




Asset Management Policy 2018-2023
Asset Management Strategy 2018-2023
Asset Management Action Plan

Page 41

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

13.0

Appendices

13.1

Appendix 1 – Low Hill Youth Resource Centre Location Plan

Page 42

LS0378 - Low Hill Resource Centre
Appendix 1

© Crown c opyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100019537

Page 43

1:1,250

¯

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 8

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
21 April 2021
Report title

Schedule of Individual Executive Decision
Notices

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

All

Key decision

No

In forward plan

No

Wards affected

All

Accountable director

Mark Taylor, Deputy Chief Executive

Originating service

Democratic Services

Accountable employee

Fabrica Hastings
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

N/A

Democratic Services Officer
01902 552699
Fabrica.hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendation for noting:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is asked to note:
1. The summary of open and exempt individual executive decisions approved by the
appropriate Cabinet Members following consultation with the relevant employees.

Page 45

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices
Part 1 – Open Items
City Environment

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Steve
Director of City
19 March 2021
Amanda Millard
Evans
Environment
01902 551799
Title and summary of decision
Transportation Network – Traffic Regulation Orders Prouds Lane, Harper Road, Carnaby
Street, Abbey Road
1. Approved the recommended action to implement waiting restrictions to parts of Prouds
Lane, Harper Road, Carnaby Street, Abbey Road (Plan T4/4391).
2. Approved the recommended action to implement a mandatory left turn restriction to part
of Prouds Lane (Plan T4/4392).
3. Approved the proposed revocation (in part) of existing Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
in Prouds Lane where necessary to allow the implementation of the new TROs.
4. Authorised the Director of Governance to implement the relevant traffic regulation
orders.

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Steve
Director of City
5 March 2021
Emma Caddick
Evans
Environment
01902 554320
Title and summary of decision
Complaints Policy - Covid
Approved the proposed complaints policy in relation to action taken under The Health
Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (All Tiers) (England) Regulations 2021 (as amended).
The policy will apply to any subsequent revisions to this legislation or superseding legislation in
relation to business restrictions.

Education

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Dr Michael Director of Children's
2 February 2021
Sarah McElduff
Hardacre
and Adult Services
07989854448
Title and summary of decision
Instrument of Government - Lawnswood Campus Pupil Referral Unit
Approved the proposed Instrument of Government for Lawnswood Campus, Pupil Referral
Unit, Wolverhampton.

Page 46

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Dr Michael Director of Children’s
2 February 2021
Sarah McElduff
Hardacre
and Adult Services
07989854448
Title and summary of decision
Instrument of Government for Colton Hills Community secondary School
Approved the proposed Instrument of Government for Colton Hills Community Secondary
School.
Housing

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Jacqueline Director of City
11 March 2021
Michelle Garbett
Sweetman
Environment
01902 552954
Title and summary of decision
New Build Local Lettings Plan
1. Approved the revised New Build Local Lettings Plan expanding the additional priority
afforded to transferring social housing tenants for new build homes to include tenants of
Registered Providers as well as Council tenants.
2. Approved the change of terminology from Emergency Band to Highest Priority Need to
take account of the addition of an Emergency+ Band that will be introduced into
Allocations Policy Summer 2021.
3. Approved the increase from 10 percent to 20 percent of homes on a new build
development being allocated to those in the highest priority need to assist with
alleviating homelessness and the pressures on temporary accommodation.

Joint Cabinet Member Approvals

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Louise
Director of Finance and 19 March 2021
Sean McBurney
Miles and Councillor
Director of Public
01902 556356
Steve Evans
Health and Wellbeing
Title and summary of decision
Fees and Charges 2021-2022 – City Environment
1. Approved the introduction of a phased approach to implement changes in the fees and
charges framework - Price increases will only be implemented when business and
market intelligence indicate it is viable to do so.
2. Approved to change the concession eligibility criteria by removing 60+ / full-time
students and providing a specific membership for these two groups - However,
members in these groups, that meet the concession criteria on economic/financial
grounds will still be eligible for a concession rate membership.

Page 47

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Paula
Director of Strategy
31 March 2021
Charlotte Johns
Brookfield and
and Director of Finance
01902 554240
Councillor Louise
Miles
Title and summary of decision
Transfer of the West Midlands Strategic Migration Partnership (WMSMP) to the City of
Wolverhampton Council
1. Approved the proposed TUPE transfer of the West Midlands Strategic Migration
Partnership (WMSMP) into the Council and the Council entering into a Transfer
Agreement with Birmingham City Council.
2. Approved the short-term allocation of funds totalling £258,000 from the Budget
Contingency Reserve in order to facilitate the transfer of the West Midlands Strategic
Migration Partnership whilst grant terms and conditions are being finalised.

Part 2 – Exempt Items
Housing

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Jacqueline Director of City
4 March 2021
Chris Elgerton
Sweetman
Environment
01902 551345
Title and summary of decision
Shared Ownership Property at The Glade
1. Approved the sale of the initial sales equity of the final shared ownership property at the
site known as The Glade, Merry Hill, as detailed in the body of the report.
Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Jacqueline Director of City
10 March 2021
Karen Beasley
Sweetman
Environment
01902 554893
Title and summary of decision
New Park Village Re-development programme - Private property purchase (2)
1. Approved the completion of the purchase of the former council property listed in
Appendix 1 at the agreed price of £100,000 plus Home Loss compensation.
2. Authorised the Chief Legal Officer or other authorised officers to execute legal
documentation to put the purchases into effect.

Page 48

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Jacqueline Director of City
10 March 2021
Chris Elgerton
Sweetman
Environment
01902 551345
Title and summary of decision
Market to Affordable Housing Conversion Programme - Property Purchases
1. Approved the completion of the purchase of the former council property listed in
Appendix 1 to the report at the agreed price of £68,000.
2. Authorised the Chief Legal Officer or other authorised officers to execute legal
documentation to put the purchases into effect.
Decision maker
Councillor Jacqueline
Sweetman

In consultation with
Deputy Chief Executive

Date Approved
11 March 2021

Contact Officer
Julia Nock
01902 555614

Title and summary of decision
Land and Property Transactions – Easement between Sutherland Avenue and Bilston
Road
Approved the completion of the transaction listed below:
1. Easement to City Fibre telecoms site on disused railway between Sutherland Avenue
and Bilston Road.
Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Councillor Jacqueline Deputy Chief Executive 10 March 2021
Sweetman
Title and summary of decision
Land and Property Transactions – IEDN 54
Approved the completion of the transactions listed below:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Contact Officer
Julia Nock
01902 555614

Variation of restrictive covenant – Former garage site at Rudge Avenue
Deed of Easement – Penk Rise, Tettenhall
Release of charge and restriction - Littles Lane (Carvers), Wolverhampton
Land adjacent to 17 Grange Road – Tettenhall
Land adjacent to 62 Holloway Street, Stow heath.

Page 49

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Education

Decision maker
Councillor Dr Michael
Hardacre

In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Director of Children's
12 March 2021
David Kirby
and Adult Services
01902 554152
Director of Finance
Title and summary of decision
Secondary School Expansion Programme
1. Approved the Council entering into a Grant Agreement with Amethyst Academy Trust in
respect of Moreton School.
2. Approved the capital allocation from existing funds within the Secondary School
Expansion Programme budget to permanently expand Moreton School so to cater for 210
places per year group.
3. Approved that capital funding be released in order that the expansion project is
progressed in a timely manner.
4. Approved the awarding of a grant to Moreton School to fund the school expansion.
Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Dr Michael Director of Children’s
2 February 2021
Sarah McElduff
Hardacre
and Adult Services
07989854448
Title and summary of decision
Instrument of Government for Colton Hills Community secondary School
Approved the proposed Instrument of Government for Colton Hills Community Secondary
School.
Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor John
Director of Children’s
9 March 2021
Rachel King
Reynolds
and Adult Services
01902 555955
Title and summary of decision
Award of Contract – Specialist Intensive Therapeutic Support
Approved the award of the contract for Specialist Intensive Therapeutic Support (CWC20145)
to Barnardo Services Limited, registered at Tanners Lane, Barkingside, Ilford, Essex IG6 1QG
(company registration number 01227919) for a duration of up to four years, from 1 May 2021
to 31 March 2024 ( three years with a possibility to extend for one years) for an estimated total
contract value of £1,400,000.

Page 50

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Joint Cabinet Member Approvals

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Stephen
Director of Finance
26 October 2020
Harold Mututa
Simkins and
and Director of
01902 551603
Councillor Louise
Regeneration
Miles
Title and summary of decision
Acceptance of Additional External Funding from the European Regional Development
Fund (ERDF) for the AIM For GOLD Business Support Programme
1. Approved that the Council sign the variation to the funding agreement attached at
Appendix 2 to the report which, will allow the Council to accept the £563,192 additional
ERDF the government has awarded to the Black Country Local Enterprise Partnership to
support businesses in the visitor economy and wider economy.
2. Approved the creation of the required supplementary revenue budget in accordance with
the variation to funding document, fully funded by the ERDF grant.

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item No: 10

Document is Restricted

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Document is Restricted

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item No: 11

Document is Restricted

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item No: 12

Document is Restricted

Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

